CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, MAY 15, 2013
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Esposito, Gavle
Goss, Greenman, Jouron, Lembke, Skluzacek, andddaydre present. Mr. Batastini was absent.

Michelle Rentzsch, Director of Planning and Ecorobevelopment, Latika Bhide and Elizabeth Maxwell,
both Planners, were present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise tthgalledge of Allegiance. He led those in attendam
the Pledge.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting was being iséelnow as well as recorded for future playbacthen
City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE MAY 1, 2013 PLANNING AND ZON ING COMMISSION
MEETING

Mr. Skluzacek moved to approve the minutes fromMag 1, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting as presented. Mr. Gavle seconded the madda roll call, all members present voted ayetitvh
passed.

2013-15 UDO AMENDMENTS—- PUBLIC HEARING
The petitioner is requesting to be continued todilnee 5, 2013 PZC meeting.

Mr. Esposito moved to continue 2013-15 UDO Amendimi¢a the June 5, 2013 PZC meeting. Mr.
Greenman seconded the motion. On voice vote, @thbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2013-20 FUHLER — 905 Pyott Rd— PUBLIC HEARING
This petitioner was continued from the May 1, 2P meeting.
Variations for building and parking lot setbacksl é&andscaping requirements.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaldl the surrounding property owners were ndtdred
the Certificate of Publication was in the file. .NHayden waived the reading of the legal noticdaut
objection.

John Fuhler was present to represent his petitdmFuhler said he is requesting variations fgrexisting
building in light of the fact that Pyott Road whké widened and the property line will be movedelds the
building. He is asking for the variations so tiainything catastrophic happens, he will be ablesbuild
as-is.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 2

There was no one in the public who wished to controerthis petition. The public portion was closed
this time.

Mr. Goss said if another lane is added to that feadbuilding will become a drive-through. Ms. Lieke
and Mr. Skluzacek said they are in favor of theuss.

Mr. Gavle asked if there will be any work done be paving or to the property. Mr. Fuhler said the
Highway Department said they will move reconfigane of the handicapped parking spaces that isstlose
to the building so it is away from the roadway. . KBavle asked if the petitioner had considered ngathe
northern driveway enter only and the southernmagéaay exit only. That would allow for angled kisng

and would be easier movements. Mr. Fuhler saiddlhernmost was always an exit only. There was a
sign there in the beginning. Mr. Gavle askedef¢bnfiguration of the parking lot had changed. ®ihler

said nothing has changed. He said they will cardige “in only” by the building and the out only the
south leg.

Mr. Greenman thanked the petitioner for hangingpere with what is going on. He asked if the patier
had any concerns with the conditions listed instadf report. Mr. Fuhler said no. Mr. Greenmaiadl $e
believes the standards for the variation have besmn

Mr. Jouron said he does not have a problem withréguest.

Mr. Hayden stated that he has no problem with dgiest. He said they usually struggle with finding
hardships for variations but this is the strongase for hardship he has seen. The petitionetysasking

for the ability to rebuild his building if anythirghould happen. Mr. Hayden thanked the petititoretoing
business in Crystal Lake.

Mr. Skluzacek moved to approve Variations fromA#ticle 3-200 Density and Dimensional Standards to
allow a 15.4 foot building setback; and B. Artidl00 E Off-Street Parking and Loading and Art#ci€©0

F Landscaping and Screening Standards to allovicatOparking lot and landscape screening setback fo
Fuhler at 905 Pyott Road with the following conalits:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Fuhler, received 04/12/13)

B. Site/Landscape Plan (Earth Industries, dated-89 received 4/29/13)

2. Any future changes to the building or site shalfequired to comply with the ordinances in dféc
that time, provided they were not granted a vamathrough this request.

3. In the case of a catastrophic event, the bigldimd parking lot may be replaced/rebuilt in thanrent
location and configuration.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 3

4. The petitioner shall address all of the revi@mments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building and Planning and Economic Development Diepants.

Mr. Goss seconded the motion. On roll call, alhmbers voted aye. Motion passed.

Mr. Hayden said the Commission had discussed pessitanges to the UDO regarding administrative
approvals. He feels this is a case for that aggrois. Bhide said they were already working oa th
language to cover a situation like this.

2013-18 BEBE'S DOG DAY SPA — 15 Morgan St- PUBLIC HEARING
This petition was continued from the May 1, 2013R#Aeeting.
SUP Amendment to allow overnight boarding of dogs.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaldl the surrounding property owners were ndtdred
the Certificate of Publication was in the file. .NHayden waived the reading of the legal noticdaut
objection.

Kristin Bourey and Victoria Smith were present &present the petition. Ms. Bourey said they are
requesting to add overnight care to their previpagiproved day care and grooming facility. Cutigen
they take the dogs to the outdoor potty area betweem. to 9 a.m. and everything is double bagdésl.
Bourey said they are currently licensed as a kesptlator through the State of lllinois. She dalte dogs
appear ill, they can't stay there during the dap@groomed. It would be the same for overnigiy.st

Ms. Bourey believes that they meet the FindingSadit listing in the staff report. She said thees\an e-
mail sent to staff stating concerns they have attmutequest. She said they have already beeo\agapior

12 dogs maximum during the day for day care andrgiog. Also this property is not zoned “R-2” Sieg|
Family Residential but it is zoned “M” Manufactugin They have been inspected, approved and licensed
through the lllinois Department of Agriculture asemnel. Many of their clients are from the neigttiiood

and walk their dogs to the facilities and this ioavenience to the neighbors who require thesecest

Ms. Bourey continued stating that this use will detract from the area. She said there were photos
provided showing the building prior to and aftegithhenovations. There will not be additional ti@since

they are not that busy to interfere with it. Atdbof the dogs they have are not dropped off okl at the
same time. She said the dogs will not be outside 9 p.m. to 7 a.m. so there will not be any noise
associated with them.

Ms. Bourey said they repaired the fence prior teropg the business and it was approved by the Titgre
was a concern about dogs not being on leashesh&habserved several dogs in the area that ruméro
the neighborhood without leases and those areagstflom their facility. Their clients are requir® bring
their dogs in and out of the building on a leaShe said that any fecal matter is picked up imntelyiand
double bagged before being disposed of in a dumpstéhe premises. Also the yard is rinsed onsan a
needed basis. Ms. Bourey said she has not recanedomplaints from a neighbor who works overnight
about a noise problem.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 4

There was no one in the public who wished to controerthis petition. The public portion was closed
this time.

Mr. Greenman said the presentation was very thdroute asked staff if any complaints were received.
Ms. Bhide said no. Mr. Greenman said the vast ntgjofthe concerns raised when they first came/éod
were about overnight kenneling. He asked whatexhtisem to now request overnight kenneling. Ms.
Bourey said in the beginning they wanted to adahkéng but wanted the business to get started.s&ide
their clients have been asking them to start tihen an owner finds someone that they are confiierta
with and the dogs are comfortable, they prefer tteestay there. Mr. Greenman asked about sounfiipgoo
the building. Ms. Bourey said the building is soundproofed but she would consider it if necessisity
Greenman said the Commission tries to protect thetppetitioner and the residents. He is conceabedt
the overnight business but there have not been@nplaints about the current business. He ad@dedth
neighbors were notified, no one is here, and statived only one inquiry. Mr. Greenman said lppsuts
the petition.

Mr. Gavle said he has dropped his dogs off for thogrand almost every time he could hear the atbgs
barking. He is fearful that this won't be a satbry situation. The homes are very close indhed. He
can't support the request. Ms. Bourey said thg’€ivater plant is next to their business and there
residential across the street. Mr. Greenman baietis “R-2" zoning on three sides of this propeis.
Bourey said a typical boarding facility can haveto®0 dogs.

Mr. Esposito said he knew this was coming when tiaage in originally. He said there haven't beey an
complaints. He added that more soundproofing neaydeded. Ms. Bourey said she is willing to add th
soundproofing if it is deemed necessary.

Mr. Skluzacek said the closest neighbor is acrosggith Street. He said dogs make noise whethénmtis
a kennel or a neighbor’s dog. Mr. Skluzacek asi@el many dogs they take out at one time. Ms. Boure
said 1 to 2 at a time depending on the size otltys.

Mr. Goss asked if there will be staff staying thevernight. Ms. Bourey said the last outdoor puiit}/be

at 9 p.m. and there will be cameras in the facihgt can be checked from their phones. Mr. Gsksaif
there were other dog day cares in manufacturingsareMs. Bhide said yes. Mr. Goss asked if Dr.
Chamberland on Virginia and next to residentialtvarnight boarding. Ms. Bhide said yes. Mr. Hayd
added that it is for animals that had surgery. Glvss said there is also someone staying thereis He
concerned with someone staying overnight in theufaaturing district. He added that he is on theé
with this request because of the proximity to restdl.

Mr. Hayden said he is concerned as well with itkse to residential. Also he has concerns abimut t
dumpster not being the most pleasant thing to lbe imethe summer whether the fecal matter is double
bagged or not. Ms. Bourey said they do use scdrggd and rinse down the area as needed. Mr. Hayde
said this is too close to residential. He revietvedFindings of Fact. The business is desirable¢his is



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 5

next to residential. The odors may not be dailytbey will happen. He is concerned with the rdifi@im
the rinse down of the area being so close to thernvpdant.

Mr. Hayden feels that having the dogs outsidezatré may be a little early and suggested possditagging
that to 8 a.m. Ms. Bourey is concerned aboutithe span between being allowed to take the dogbudut
she said it is doable. Mr. Hayden also is conakab®ut what might happen when the petitioneraslezp
with no one on-site. Ms. Bourey said they will ntonthe dogs and stay there overnight if necesshsiry
Greenman asked if the other kennels provide soms&boestays on the premises overnight. Ms. Bhidk sa
she had reviewed the ordinances for the other kemmel the ordinances and minutes do not discass th
Ms. Bourey said they would prefer not to have sameethere overnight.

Mr. Greenman said they need to look only at thaképortion since they already have certain procegin
place such as picking up from the dogs when outdwte Esposito said they are doing what they stitel
doing which is more than what most pet owners demwtutside.

Mr. Esposito moved to approve the Special Use R&mendment in accordance with Article 2, Land Use,
of the UDO, to allow overnight boarding serviceshas pet care facility for BeBe’s Dog Day Spa &t 1
Morgan Street with the following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Kristin Bourey, received 4-4-2012)

B. Plat of Survey (Luco, on-file)

C. Floor Plan (Bourey, on-file)

2. The Special Use Permit Amendment allows ovéitrigarding services at BeBe’s Dog Day Care
and Spa for up to 12 dogs.

3. The Building Commissioner will determine whethdditional sound proofing is required.
4. All previous conditions of Ordinance 6735 slagply.

5. The petitioner shall address any comments agdinements from the Engineering and Building,
Fire Rescue, Police, Public Works, and PlanningEecwhomic Development Departments.

6. The dogs may be released into the outside runeas only between 7 a.m. and 8:30 p.m.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll call, membEsposito, Greenman, Jouron, Lembke, and
Skluzacek voted aye. Members Gavle, Goss and Hayated no. Motion passed.

Mr. Goss stated that his no vote was due to themity to residential. Mr. Hayden agreed and adithed
he is also concerned with the business being ditsep



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 6

2013-23 INDUCTION HEAT TREATING CORP — 775 Tek Drive — PUBLIC HEARING
Variation for parking lot and landscaping.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaldl the surrounding property owners were ndtdred
the Certificate of Publication was in the file. .NHayden waived the reading of the legal noticdaut
objection.

Mike Smith and Dave Haimbaugh were present to sgprigghe petition. Mr. Smith said the businegsba
shop, has been located in that building since 198®ir business currently runs 24 hours a dayys da
week and there is a problem with parking duringsthi& overlap. There is not enough parking at tinae.
They were required to put in landscaped islandberparking lot which, if removed, would help witre
parking issues. Also it is hard for the semisriteethe lot coming from the west because the asiam
their way. Mr. Smith said they enjoy being in Gayd ake but they need some help with the parkidg.
showed photos of the building and parking area. Svtrith said they will be adding to the other |laragsng
on the property. He said the business has groaihey need parking. In the past they have bdewad
to park in the Black Diamond lot across the stkegttheir lots are full now too.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraerthis petition. The public portion was closed
this time.

Mr. Goss asked if they would need the island togmidthe employees’ cars from the trucks. Mr. Sreatid
the trucks do come in slow. He added that wherbthieling was built, it was under different ordican
requirements. There can be five spaces put iratleatand they would also like to add motor cyelking

as well. Mr. Smith added that there are two laagedumps which also could be removed to add one mo
parking space. Mr. Haimbaugh said there was attiadgbut on a few years ago. He said the property
landlocked.

Mr. Greenman asked if the first shift is maxed ddt. Smith said they could have more people ihghdt.
Mr. Greenman said the second shift is not maxeédlda is glad the business is doing well. Hisstioa is
will this be enough for 5 years from now or is tjist a band aid. He also asked if Engineeringbakied
at any possible reconfigurations such as one-waylation or angled parking. Ms. Maxwell said &taf
looked at various possibilities but nothing gaventhany more parking.

Mr. Jouron asked if there were any way to evertloshifts. Mr. Smith said the problem is offitafBng
and their customers coming to the office. He fagdmajority of the work is done from 8 to 5 anejtlare
currently shuffling employees to other shifts the parking issue remains.

Mr. Skluzacek said he owns a business on Praiee&ind the semi-drivers have no problem backayu
a regular City street.

Mr. Goss said he doesn’t have a problem with rengpthe large island or the smaller portions toterdse
additional parking.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 7

Mr. Gavle asked about the trees. Mr. Smith sagg thill be re-landscaping the front of the buildizgd
replacing the dead trees. He said appearanceyismportant to them.

Mr. Greenman said he appreciates the petitionegsiest. The Findings of Fact have been met. The
hardships are the property is landlocked and tyeuteof the building on the property.

Mr. Hayden asked if the petitioners had any quastar concerns with the conditions listed in thadfst
report. Mr. Smith said no.

Mr. Smith thanked Ms. Maxwell for all of her helptiwthis request.

Mr. Greenman moved to approve the Variation froriche 4-400 F. Landscaping and Screening Standards
to allow the elimination of the required landscegb@nds at the ends of the parking rows for Indurctieat
Treating Corp at 775 Tek Drive with the followingrditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (IHT, received 04/29/13)

B. Site/Landscape Plan (Earth Industries, dated-82 received 4/29/13)

2. Any landscape materials removed from remainamgi$écape areas shall be replaced with similar
materials. A landscape plan shall be submittetie¢dCity for review and approval. This includes th
foundation base landscape around the building.

3. Work with staff to add some landscape mateaatsind the site which may include decorative
grasses, shrubs, evergreens or flowers near thestjthe eastern property line.

4. The petitioner shall address all of the revi@mments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building and Planning and Economic Development Diepants.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll callnadimbers voted aye. Motion passed.
Mr. Hayden said the Commissioners don’t have a@onwith supporting this variation.

REPORT FROM PLANNING
- Signature Auto — 970 Pyott Road — Use Variation

Ms. Rentzsch reviewed the petitions for the next PZeeting.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MAY 15, 2013
PAGE 8

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
Mr. Hayden asked about the extremely large sigritlt Max on Route 14. Ms. Rentzsch said she would
look into it.

Mr. Hayden asked about Texas Road House. Ms. Rangaid they have submitted their revised plans fo
further review and building permit, so they are mgvorward.

There were no other comments from the Commissioners

The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m.



